
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
June 1, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 
      Ryan Nicasio, PARS 
      Sukey Robb-Wilder (via phone) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Acting President Marquez de la Plata at 
6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Marquez de la Plata reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap moved 
to approve the Consent Calendar. Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following 
items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 4, 2017 Board Meeting and the May 4, 2017 
Special Meeting.  


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 


 1







C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) 


Rate Stabilization Program and its use in Addressing CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial 
Liability.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Ryan Nicasio, Vice President of 
PARS, provided a more detailed overview of the Rate Stabilization Program.  Board 
questions and discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Sukey Robb-Wilder, 
appearing via telephone.  No formal action was taken.     


 
V-B. (7:17 p.m.)  Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-10, Adopting the 


FY 2017-18 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  Director Marquez de la 
Plata opened the Public Hearing at 7:18 p.m.  The GM made a PowerPoint presentation 
on the proposed budget.  There were no public comments.  Director Marquez de la Plata 
closed the Public Hearing at 7:25 p.m.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Lipinski 
moved to approve as modified (Line Item 8620.3-Transfers to CIRF- was modified on the 
FY 2017-18 budget from $340,000 to $320,000) Resolution 17-10, Adopting the FY 
2017-18 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget .  Director Holmer seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-C. (7:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-11, Approving an 


Agreement for Bond Counsel for the USDA Bond.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Holmer moved to Approve Resolution 17-
11, Declaring the Emergency Condition for Neeley Road Repair Terminated.  


 
V-D. (7:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-12, Approving an 


Agreement for Bond Counsel for the USDA Bond.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  No action was taken, but this item 
was continued for further discussion/action at the July Board meeting.  


 
V-E. (7:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Water Rights and the SCWA Fish Flow 


Project.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Extensive Board discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
V-F. (8:36 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:45 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall/Russian River Flow 
4. River Lane Property Sale 
5. 2017 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
 
Board discussion ensued. 


 2







 3


 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:52 p.m.) 


 
Director Lipinski announced there was a SCWA waste project in Occidental. 
Director Lipinski brought to the Board's attention a May 28 article in the Press Democrat regarding 


County water rules 
Director Marquez de la Plata brought to the Board's attention that District leaks on Canyon 6 and 


Canyon 7 were very quickly addressed by District staff 
Director Marquez de la Plata announced that the GM had spoken at a Friends of Rio Nido meeting 


and his talk was well received 
Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue announced that she would miss the July meeting 
GM Steve Mack announced that he would mss the October meeting 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:59 p.m.) 
 
At 8:58 p.m., Director Marquez de la Plata announced the items for discussion in Closed 
Session.  At 8:59 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:05 p.m., the meeting 
reconvened and the following action was taken on the Closed Session item listed below: 
 
 A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 
  Title: Field Manager 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:46 p.m.) 
 
1. SCWA Fish Flow Project 
2. District Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) and PARS 
3. Closed Session -  
4. Guernewood Park Resort 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:45 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:52 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:59 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


July 6, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 1, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Appeal of District's Rejection of New Water Service at 


14712 Eagles Nest, Rio NIdo (Est. time 20 min) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-12, Approving an Agreement for 


Bond Counsel for the USDA Bond. (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re District Water Rights and the SCWA Fish Flow Project (Est. 


time 10 min) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re CSDA Ballot to Elect Two Representatives (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-13, For the Election of Directors to the 


Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Board of Directors (4 open 
seats to be filled)  (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 based on correspondence from Leslie Bahr 
(one potential case) 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN











































































SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 6, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 17-12 AUTHORIZING THE ENGAGEMENT 
OF BOND COUNSEL IN CONNECTION WITH A LOAN TO BE MADE TO THE 
DISTRICT BY THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL 
UTILITIES SERVICES, FOR THE FINANCING OF CIP 2017, PHASES 2 AND 3 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 17-12 which authorizes the General 
Manager to execute a professional services agreement with Kronick Moskovitz, 
Tiedemann & Girard for provision of Bond Counsel services to complete a loan obligation 
with USDA, RUS for construction of Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The agreement has a not to exceed amount of $20,000 plus out of 
pocket expenses which will be funded by the proceeds of the loan obligation. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
The District has agreed to move forward with a USDA loan obligation to fund completion 
of Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP.  Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP are replacement of 
approximately 4,600 ft of existing main and 58 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive near where Old River Road intersects with 
River Road, and includes Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive.  The USDA loan obligation will 
have a total value of approximately $1.8 million and will have a 40 year amortization.  
The bond will cost the District approximately $70,000 per year.      
 
The bond counsel will be the lead person for completion of the USDA bond  
 
Staff interviewed 3 bond counsel firms recommended by USDA and Brandis Tallman 
which has done public financing for the District in the past.  Staff is recommending the 
selection of Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann, & Girard.  Attached is background 
information on the firm.   
 
We would be working with attorney Jonathan Cristy, who had worked on over 20 USDA 
financings in the last 15 years.  He believes financing can be completed in three to four 
months if everything goes according to plan.  Construction is slated to begin next spring 
or summer. 











 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 17-12 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  


AUTHORIZING THE ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL IN 
CONNECTION WITH A LOAN TO BE MADE TO THE DISTRICT BY 
THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL 
UTILITIES SERVICES (USDA/RUS) FOR THE FINANCING OF 


CIP 2017, PHASES 2 AND 3 
 


WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) has completed the 
application process and been approved by the USDA/RUS (Rural Utility Services) for the 
issuance of loan obligations totaling approximately $1.8 million to finance construction of 
CIP 2017, Phases 2 and 3; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes at this time to authorize the engagement 


of bond counsel to complete the issuance and delivery of these loan obligations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 


Springs Water District as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Engagement of Professional Services.  The firm of Kronick, 


Moskovitz, Tiedemann & Girard is hereby retained as Bond Counsel in connection with the 
authorization, issuance and delivery of obligations representing a loan by the USDA, Rural 
Utility Services (RUS).  The General Manager of the District is hereby authorized and 
directed on behalf of the District to execute an Agreement with Bond Counsel, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A.   


 
Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after the 


date of approval and adoption thereof. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 


duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 6, 2017, 
by the following vote: 


 
Director   Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder      
Tim Lipinski       
Gaylord Schaap      
Richard Holmer      
Pip Marquez de la Plata     


 
  


          
     Pip Marquez de la Plata 
     Acting President of the Board of Directors 
 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 





















		Item V-B - Selection of Bond Counsel

		Item V-B.1 - Bond Counsel Firm overview

		Item V-B.2 - Resolution 17-12 USDA Bond Counsel Agmt

		Item V-B.3 - Agreement for Bond Counsel Services






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 6, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: District Water Rights and the SCWA Fish Flow Project  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   None. 
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not known. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
This item has been included as a placeholder for Board discussion, should there be a 
wish to discuss this topic further.  Background hasn't change since the last meeting.   
 
Attached is an article on this topic that appeared in Sonoma West Times on June 13, 
2017. 
 

















		Item V-C - District Water Rights and the SCWA Fish Flow Project

		Item V-C.1 - Sonoma West article re fish flow 06-13-2017






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 6, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: Guernewood Park Resort  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   None. 
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not known. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
There has been no activity on this item since the last Board meeting.  
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 6, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: CSDA Ballot to Elect Two Representatives 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Complete CSDA ballot to elect representatives to fill two 
seats on the CSDA Board of Directors. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is information the District has received from CSDA to complete a ballot for the 
election of two representatives to serve on the CSDA Board.  There are three (3) 
candidates running for the two open seats. 
 
In the past we have included ballots on the Consent calendar, with a candidate 
recommended by staff.  However, with Steve on medical leave the decision is more 
appropriately a Board discussion. 
 


 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 6, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution 17-13, Ballot to Elect 4 candidates to serve on the SDRMA 
Board of Directors 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Complete and approve Resolution 17-13, which includes a 
ballot for the election of four (4) SDRMA Board members.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is information the District has received from SDRMA regarding an election for 
four (4) open Board seats on the SDRMA Board of Directors, including information about 
each of the seven (7) candidates.  One candidate, Tim Unruh, sent a separate mailer 
with information about himself. 
 
In the past we have included ballots on the Consent calendar, with a candidate 
recommended by staff.  However, with Steve on medical leave the decision is more 
appropriately a Board discussion. 
 


 
  





